
ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION  
  MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 16, 2017 MEETING 

 
A meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, February 16, 2017, 7:00 
p.m. at the Ada Township Offices, 7330 Thornapple River Dr., Ada, MI. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Leisman at 7:00 p.m.  
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Commissioners Lunn, Easter, Leisman, and Butterfield 
Absent:   Jacobs, Burton 
Staff Present:  Planning Director Ferro, Planner/Zoning Administrator Brent Bajdek 
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Add Consideration of Vitale's, Work Session, and DDA meeting and Parking Commission under Staff 
Reports.  Moved by Easter, supported by Lunn, to approve the agenda as amended.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JANUARY 19, 2017 AND JOINT MEETING ON 
 JANUARY 26, 2017 
 
Moved by Easter, supported by Butterfield, to approve the January 19, 2017 Meeting minutes.  Leisman 
stated in the Joint Meeting Minutes there was discussion about the on-site use changes, and it should say 
“we talked about the Planning Commission’s approach, including shared and public parking when 
reviewing site plans in the village area, and raised concerns about use changes and the accumulative 
effect.”  Motion by Easter, supported by Butterfield to approve the January 26, 2017 Joint Meeting 
minutes as amended.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 
V. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Request for Special Use Permit to allow a Foster Care Group Home in the R-3 and VR Districts, 
7133, 7147, and 7164 Rix Street SE, Parcel Nos. 41-15-33-231-019, 011 and 012, AMDG Architects, 
for Thornapple Homes, LLC 
 
Tom Sinke, AMDG Architects on behalf of Thornapple Homes, stated the proposed project is to provide 
housing for developmentally disabled adults who need a place to live.  He explained that project was 
originally approved in 2010, but they were not successful in securing financial support.  We feel we have 
a design that fits well with the Village of Ada.  We’re interested in the residents being connected with the 
community so it will be set up for pedestrian access to the village, and pedestrian connection to the 
church.  He stated there will be eight condominium units, which will be controlled by Thornapple Homes 
by having first refusal on any sale. 
 
Leisman opened the public hearing on the Special Use Permit request to allow a foster care group home 
on Rix Street. 
 
Ken Dixon, 523 Ada Drive, stated it looks like a good project for the village. 
 
Planning Director Jim Ferro read a letter from Kristopher Kaiser, 7351 Bronson Street, who stated they 
are concerned with the speed of traffic on Rix Street, that street has no sidewalks, and they believe the 
proposed facility should be obligated to bear the full cost of improvements or safe paths to be traveled, 
and restricted access to the railroad right-of-way.  They believe the Township should pursue installing 
sidewalk down the right-of-way to the pedestrian tunnel that’s near Ada Drive to provide a connection 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 2 of 10 
 
along that entire street into the village.  Ferro stated requiring the developer to pay for an off-site 
improvement is not something that’s legally permissible for us to do. 
 
Butterfield stated that reminds me that we had talked about the storm water detention area, and was that 
going to be fenced for safety on the property. 
 
Ferro stated he did not believe so, stating he does not know if its design will provide for it to retain a lot 
of water for any lengthy period of time. 
 
Leisman closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Planner/Zoning Administrator Brent Bajdek gave an overview of previous actions, and stated approval of 
the Special Use Permit is recommended with the same 2010 conditions of approval. 
 
Butterfield noted that Tom in his comments said pedestrian access to the village; there are no sidewalks 
and edges are sketchy, so what did you mean by that. 
 
Sinke stated we are providing sidewalk along our street frontage. 
 
Butterfield questioned if off-street parking is going to be shielded and stated that maintaining the 
residential feel as much as possible is important. 
 
Easter asked if they are concerned about the residents and the proximity to the railroad. 
 
Jim Tuinstra, Board of Thornapple Homes, stated we are not concerned about that.  We will be selecting 
the residents so that they are appropriate to live in that type of an environment.  One of the real appeals 
for us is there are a lot of higher functioning developmentally disabled people that the village would 
provide opportunities for employment, etc.  We will have a vehicle there with live-in staff.  In the worst 
case scenario we’d provide transportation, and the best case scenario is it would be wonderful if they 
could access the village through sidewalks, but we would want it to be a safe environment for them. 
 
Leisman stated we have the recommendation from staff to approve the Special Use Permit subject to five 
conditions set forth in the February 16, 2017 memo to the Planning Commission. 
 
Moved by Easter, supported by Butterfield, to approve the Special Use Permit to allow a Foster Care 
Group Home at 7133, 7147, and 7164 Rix Street SE, subject to the five conditions in the Planners memo. 
 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Development Plan Review, 12,199 Square Foot Commercial Building in the PVM District, 400 Ada 
Drive, portion of Parcel No. 41-15-34-136-017, Ufuk Turan 
 
Steve Teitsma, Progressive AE, stated the project is within the Marketplace Square condominium along 
Ada Drive and Fulton, and would be bordered on the south by the future River Street which plans to 
connect to Headley to the west, and the west side of Unit 4 would be future Settlers Street which would 
run into Ada Drive.  The goal is to start construction on those roads this year.  The northwest corner of 
Unit 4 is right at the front door of the McDonald’s site at the Plaza Shopping Center.   
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 3 of 10 
 
He stated the site layout plan shows the south and west end and east end of the building would be a brick 
patio intended to have seating outside along the sidewalk.  The north end of the building will have a 
dumpster area, and loading area.  The parking for the site is within the shared parking lot; right now there 
are approximately 114 spaces under construction, and the proposed 8.  There will be some parking along 
River Street and along Settlers Street.  He stated it will be tied into the storm sewer system that has been 
constructed, which is an infiltration trench type system, perforated storm sewer, and prior to the outlet to 
the big pond the pond along the river is a hydro-dynamic separator to provide storm water quality 
benefits.  Water and sewer will be served off the back through mains that are under design.  The 
landscape plans are deciduous trees to screen some of the mechanical equipment, and a row of Boxwoods 
along the north building wall below the windows.   
 
Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture, stated Ufuk Turan has been in the village for 21 years, and Zeytin has 
been here for 11 years.  This is a 12,213 square foot building, two-story with the characteristics of the 
brick, and the old historic look of a Midwest town, with precast windows that are large and expansive to 
open up the street front presence.  The restaurant will occupy the entire lower level with a kitchen, dining 
area, a small bar area, and potential banquet room; the second floor is reserved for office space, divided 
into two different office spaces.  There are three deviations that we’re requesting leniency on: the 
transparency of windows on River Street, and the Settlers side are deficient; the frontage of the building 
length in relation to the property line is deficient by a couple of percentage points because of the curve of 
the road.   
 
Bajdek stated the parking is located in the common elements of the condominium and will be shared by 
all of the condominium units in the development.  Significant on-street public parking will be available 
along both River Street and Settlers Street, with construction of the streets being anticipated by late fall 
2017.  He stated it appears additional landscaping is necessary per the PVM District standards for 
mechanical equipment so it is screened from view on River Street.  The proposed layout and building 
design conform with nearly all of the PVM District standards with only two minor departures.  The 
proposed frontage percentage along River Street is 86.5%, so less than the 90% requirement; approval of 
a departure from the standard is recommended.  The ground story’s façade is less than the required 75% 
of transparent storefront windows of its principle plane.  Settlers’ Street frontage is proposed at 67.4% 
while River Street frontage is proposed at 73.2%; approval of a departure from this standard is 
recommended.  Approval of the development plan is recommended subject to the findings and conditions 
as listed in the memo.   
 
Ferro asked what the schedule is for the additional future parking, the 45 spaces.  Also, the schedule for 
construction of Zeytin is to complete it and it wouldn’t be occupied until 2018, and in the meantime the 
plans are for the developer to construct River Street and the parking on River Street will be in place prior 
to Zeytin being open. 
 
Teitsma stated he does not believe there is a plan in place to construct those.  He stated yes, I believe that 
would fit the time frame. 
 
Easter asked when you said additional shared parking, were you referring to the parking spots along the 
road, or are you referring to a different parking lot. 
 
Teitsma stated there would be these eight that we’re talking about being built and that’s part of the shared 
lot that comprises the whole Marketplace Square, but there is additional on-street parking as well.  He 
stated the calculations take a pretty educated guess at what those uses would be, and Unit 6 is a pretty 
intense high parking demand.   
 
Butterfield asked if the parking takes into consideration the second floor potential use office; and would 
the surface between Units 4 and 5 be paved. 
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 4 of 10 
 
Teitsma stated, yes.  There would be a concrete patio and a sidewalk that would be constructed in 
conjunction with Unit 5 that would connect the future parking with the sidewalk along River Street.   
 
Leisman stated sheet C102 talks about the parking requirements for this building, and the formula 
calculation requirements would call for 369 parking spaces, and 150 are being provided, which is 219 
short.  He stated he doesn’t see this as a problem now, but could be in the future.  Leisman asked for a 
staff report for next month on the formula being used for parking.   
 
Easter stated no problem with the deviations, likes the character of the building, and that it is going to be a 
great addition. 
 
Butterfield stated agreement. 
 
Leisman stated it is a really nice building and it does seem to with the standards, and agree that the 
departures are minimal and offset.  He asked if Zeytin would be closed for a while. 
 
Teitsma stated the current location will remain open through the middle of 2018. 
 
Ufuk Turan, owner of Zeytin, stated he should have the lot by September, and will have 12 months to 
finish construction and move in.   
 
Ferro stated the north elevation shows a mural, and approval of the plan should not be construed as 
approving a mural, which is shown as proposed artwork.  How that is treated under our sign regulations 
will depend on what it is.   
 
Leisman stated a condition H should be added that says “approval does not include approval of proposed 
exterior artwork.”  
 
Moved by Lunn, supported by Easter, to approve the recommendation by the Planning Department of the 
findings that justify the PVM departures, and Development Plan Review in the PVM District subject to 
conditions A through G, and adding an H.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Site Plan Review, 56,070 Square Foot Commercial Development of 11 buildings on 4.4 Acre Site in 
the Industrial (I) District, 4920 E. Fulton St., Parcel No. 41-15-30-300-020, The Caves, LLC 
 
Tom Reed, owner, stated The Caves is a mini warehouse type of facility used for a variety of uses from 
personal storage to small business.  They range in size from 1,500 to 1,800 square feet.  This site has 3 up 
to 30 suites, mainly in a duplex style with a couple of triplexes because of space.  We haven’t developed a 
lot of parking for the site because it’s not intended to be that sort of use.  The buildings are spaced 60 feet 
apart so angled parking is used; and the buildings on the single drive can angle park on the building side 
and parallel park on the other side, still maintaining 23 feet for passing lanes.  There is a common 
building that has a common bathroom so the tenants don’t have to have a bathroom in their unit.  We 
went to the Kent County Health Department and got preliminary approval for where we would put our 
septic system.  There was a comment on potentially hooking up to the utilities, but for our type of 
development that would not be in the budget.   
 
Leisman asked if they would be having individual drain fields or one common.  How many wells? 
 
Reed stated one common drain field that everything would feed into.  We’re proposing two Type 3 wells, 
but probably won’t have to use both because the wells can only have 14 connects per well.  We’ll 
probably only have about one-third of the units that would have a connect with a bathroom and a sink.   
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 5 of 10 
 
Bajdek stated this will be a mini warehouse type facility on 4.4 acres.  Access to the development will be 
gained through access easements from the property located east and west of the property.  There are a 
total of 11 buildings, sheet metal, with up to 30 unit suites and approximately 56,000 feet of floor area.  
Due to the substantial elevation changes for buildings located in the northeast area of the site are proposed 
to be two story with access from both the upper and lower entries.  The units are intended for small 
business or personal storage use.  It is estimated that one-third of the intended square footage of the floor 
area will be dedicated to small business use, while two-thirds will be personal storage use.  He would 
have options to include construction of a restroom, dedicated office space, and a conference room.  The 
development is intended to be built in four phases, on an on-demand basis, with an anticipated four-year 
build out of the site.   
 
Bajdek stated as far as utilities, the site is located within the Township’s water and sanitary sewer service 
district.  However, the developer is proposing well and septic service with up to 30 water and sewer 
services provided by two Type 3 wells, and a common septic maintained drain field system is proposed.  
The Township’s consulting engineer has stated the DEQ will have concerns with the proposed sanitary 
system and anticipated flow volumes from the 30 separate laterals all flowing into the septic tanks.  
Extension to the existing water main located at Spaulding Avenue and East Fulton to provide public water 
services is recommended by the Township’s consulting engineer.  The Township’s consulting engineer 
recommends extension of the existing sanitary sewer, as well.  Storm water calculations were received 
yesterday and have not been reviewed by the Township’s engineer.  Given several outstanding and 
unresolved issues, postponement of action is recommended. 
 
Reed stated we’re waiting for site plan approval before we delve into a full-blown site plan; we want to 
make sure the concept plan is approved before we get into the detail calculations. 
 
Leisman stated the water and sewer is one that your engineer will need to talk further with the Township 
Engineering Department.   
 
Ferro stated the idea of 30 different potential occupants of this property all contributing to an on-site 
waste disposal system creates potential for a lot of bad things to happen because the owner has very little 
or no control over what people are putting down drains, what types of products or chemicals might be 
used on the property; and it seems like the most prudent thing to do is to serve it with public utilities.  It 
does not seem to be a very environmentally sound approach to use on-site waste disposal for this type of 
development when it is in the planned utility service area of the Township.   
 
Butterfield asked what is proposed for the land from Spaulding to the applicants’ property.   
 
Ferro stated its vacant land that has been owned by Amway for 30 years or more.  The only plan here is 
the applicant has discussed with Amway shared driveway access that would actually be located on the 
Amway property with an easement to the property owner. 
 
Butterfield asked if actual market studies have been done within Ada to know whether this would be one-
third versus two-third storage versus small office use. 
 
Reed stated we have some pretty good leads on tenants already, probably four or five people that are 
interested in the units; of those people four of them are probably more interested in storage.   
 
Lunn questioned two-story buildings. 
 
Reed stated there’s a 25 foot elevation drop from Fulton down to the lower level.  We’re trying to 
maximize our space and we’ve recommended having a two-story; you can pull into the lower space or 
you can pull into the upper space.  There would be an upper drive, and the other drive would come in by 
Anderson Brothers would serve the lower ones. 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 6 of 10 
 
 
Butterfield asked if you drove by on Fulton could you see these. 
 
Reed stated yes, they’d be sitting down pretty low, but you’d see the rooftops of the lower ones.   
 
Butterfield stated intentional care was put into the character of the Ada Landing storage building and what 
it looked like, and the landscaping.  It doesn’t appear there is any thought, or any intention to make these 
visually appealing. 
 
Reed stated it’s designed that way; we intentionally design them as individual buildings with green space 
in between, so we’ve tried to design them to look a little bit more aesthetic.   
 
Leisman stated her point is that coming back we’d like to see something with more of an aesthetic appeal.  
He asked other than the small business, your new office, your man cave, your hobbyist, storing your large 
toys or whatever you might need it for, what other uses are you proposing. 
 
Reed stated I think that covers most of what we have.  Our No. 1 user is probably the small business 
that’s in the area that just needs extra space.   
 
Leisman stated it sounds like the Planning Department needs several items, landscaping, and signage.  He 
asked for the Planning Department to look at the zoning ordinance regulations with respect to allowing so 
many different mixed uses without it being a PUD. 
 
Moved by Lunn, supported by Easter, to table approval of the Site Plan Review, 56,070 Square Foot 
Commercial Development in the Industrial (I) District at 4920 E. Fulton Street.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Revised Final PUD Plan, 13,104 Square Foot Commercial Building, Ada Hillside Center, 6739 and 
6751 E. Fulton St., Parcel No. 41-15-28-330-004 and 005, Neller & Wesley, LLC and 6751 Fulton 
Associates, LLC 
 
Andy Ecker, Concept Design, stated that the property is an existing PUD, there are four building that have 
been built with two more buildings approved allowing around 17,000 square feet.  We would like to put 
one two-story building with just over 13,000 square feet, and add 62 parking spaces which would take the 
total up to about 185 for that site.  We are also looking at another dumpster area for the second level 
tenants that park on the west side of the site.   
 
The look of the building is going to be a little bit different; the matching window openings are going to be 
very similar to the existing buildings; clear glass, however it will look significantly different with stone 
and wood siding to match the existing feel of the development, but try to bring it up to current design 
standards for a retail building. 
 
The most significant change is the roof slope, going away from a gable single slope, which will allow for 
signage for the upper tenants to be above their windows.  20 feet between the two buildings in lieu of 12 
feet for fire separation distance is proposed so that side windows can be kept on both buildings. 
 
Bajdek stated Hillside Center is comprised of two parcels with separate ownership.  The approved PUD 
plan has 44,000 square feet of floor area, and 191 parking spaces.  The current total square footage that 
has been built is 26,830 square feet, with a current parking supply of 123 spaces.  An additional 13,104 
square feet is proposed, a total of 185 parking spaces, which is six spaces less than the originally 
approved 191.  Eight deferred parking space are proposed.   
 
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 7 of 10 
 
The proposed building is similar in nature to the existing building in regards to floor area, building 
footprint, and horizontal and vertical massing.  The architecture of the building would be noticeably 
different from the existing buildings on site, although they would be harmonious in design and tie in with 
the existing architecture.  The major deviation in design is the roof.  Postponement is recommended, 
however, until consent from the other ownership of the PUD has been received.   
 
Leisman stated wasn’t part of the original project design layout to look like little shops as opposed to 
larger commercial buildings.   
 
Ferro stated if you look at the original site layout there are several separate buildings in the overall PUD 
plan, with each building having multiple tenants, but the individual tenants don’t have any appearance of 
being separate buildings.  There is a consistent timber trellis treatment across the frontage of each 
building.  Changing from the pitched roof to the sloped roof that slopes in a single direction is a major 
change.  The proposed design is no higher in building height than the original plans called for.  The 
reason this is in front of you is because of that change in building architecture since part of a PUD 
approval includes the architectural design of the buildings.  This change requires a revised plan approval 
by the Planning Commission.  The applicant wanted feedback before submitting a full grading plan.   
 
Ferro stated it was all one parcel when the PUD plan was approved; then the developer split it and sold 
off a portion of the property subject to shared access and parking agreement, easement, and sharing 
maintenance costs for the common areas. 
 
Leisman stated so this is a separately owned parcel, all the rest remains in common. 
 
Ferro stated no, the two western buildings are on a separate parcel, and everything from the drugstore to 
Subway is on the other parcel.  It would be appropriate to give feedback on your thoughts regarding 
changing the last building to a different architectural style if it is going to be postponed.  If it is approved 
in the future, we want to insure that it’s still considered a business center, and, therefore, only permitted to 
have one free-standing sign for the entire center, which is there now.  The building isn’t really visible 
from traffic coming west on Fulton Street because of the slope along the property boundary hides the 
building from view; it will be visible somewhat when you’re driving toward the west.  It is setback from 
the road quite a bit.  Wall signs are permitted.  Action shouldn’t be taken until we’ve heard from the 
neighboring property owner; he told me he hadn’t heard from the applicant about it until yesterday.  I 
emailed him the two plan sheets that show existing conditions and the proposed building. 
 
Easter stated I have a hard time imagining how this looks with the existing buildings; how it all fits 
together, and all flows. 
 
Ferro stated a three-dimensional rendering could be prepared showing what the appearance would be of 
the existing building and proposed building next to each other. 
 
Butterfield asked how many units would there be. 
 
Ecker stated we’re unsure of the tenants, but it’s about 6,500 square feet on each level.  Our biggest thing 
is in terms of roof slope, material; we’re trying to take cues from the wood trellis by putting some of the 
wood posts in our elevations, and upgrade the stone. 
 
Lunn asked why they decided to change it. 
 
Ecker stated to bring it up to what modern retailers are looking for; they didn’t want to deal with 
maintaining the wood trellis; so we could do lap siding like a pre-finished cement board that won’t gray 
and fade.  The other building owner just went through and sand blasted all their wood so it’s more cedar 
looking. 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 8 of 10 
 
 
Leisman stated originally wasn’t there some restriction on how much room each tenant could have for 
floor space to prevent it from turning into something large.  Is that in the original PUD  approval. 
 
Ferro stated it still is, and the original restriction was that there was a maximum of 5,000 square feet of 
restaurant space permitted in the entire center; a few years ago at the applicants request we increased that 
to 7,500 square feet.   
 
Leisman stated what’s there is there now, and this doesn’t strike me as being compatible. 
 
Ferro stated it helps to try to establish visual ties between the two architectures as the applicant has 
pointed out where he’s incorporated some timber columns on the upper part of the building and similar 
colors, without using the block and the timber trellis across the whole frontage. 
 
Moved by Lunn, supported by Easter, to table because the Planning Commission would like input from 
the other owners.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Pre-Application Conference, 10 Attached Townhomes on .47 Acre Site, 645 Ada Dr. SE, Parcel No. 
41-15-34-104-007, J. Peterson Homes 
 
Joel Peterson, owner of J. Peterson Homes stated we are known for our quality design and making sure 
that the project fits with the continuity of the neighborhood, and is compatible with the Riverpoint of Ada 
development across Ada Drive.  Our parcel is about one-half acre in size.  He stated that Staff’s memo 
stated they would prefer not to see townhomes in the corner of the property where it abuts the residential 
development, and we can re-arrange our plan to accommodate seven to eight units, making sure we keep 
to ingresses and egresses on the property. 
 
Leisman asked if there would be a plan in the future to expand it. 
 
Peterson stated this property sits low, and does not see any expansion opportunities, except for the 
property that River Point owns to the right of us. 
 
Leisman asked if we would have to have an amendment to the Regulating Plan to change the zone that 
applies, which could be a zoning ordinance amendment. 
 
Ferro stated yes, Brent’s memo lays out the options. 
 
Leisman stated we would have to do a departure to allow lot type not ordinarily permitted.   
 
Ferro stated the question is either one desirable.  Looking at the overall pattern in the Regulating Plan the 
entire block is a dark brown color, which is the Village Proper 2 Regulating Plan Zone that permits only 
single family homes.  Across Bradfield Street is the Village Edge Zone, which is intended to be a less 
intense zone but it does permit forms of housing other than just single family.  The rationale is that the 
Village Edge Zone does not have any established neighborhood character; there is a large area of vacant 
land west of Ada Elementary on Ada Drive that could be planned with a mix of housing styles, but within 
the Village Proper 2 area, you have an established residential character.  There’s a provision in the PVM 
District that states “where new development will abut an existing or approved neighborhood the new 
development should establish similar or compatible transect conditions.”  The arrangement of the three 
townhome Units 8, 9 and 10 that are five feet or less from the adjoining line don’t establish a compatible 
condition with the adjoining development.  Some changes could be made to the plan that would possibly 
allow us to conclude it is compatible, but some work on it is needed.  I wouldn’t recommend approving 
any assignment of a different lot type than what is normally permitted in this zone without determining 
that standard is met. 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 9 of 10 
 
 
Leisman stated it sounds like they’re going to match what’s across the street. 
 
Ferro started yes, and they’re somewhat separated physically from the rest of the neighborhood. 
 
Easter stated concern about the traffic and how busy it is. 
 
Ferro stated it should be looked at as to whether there should be two accesses or not, or whether the 
access should be limited to the side street. 
 
Peterson stated this site plan with the 10 units is not a submittal, it’s just here is what could happen on this 
parcel.  What we’re looking for is should we proceed with staff, with some direction from the Planning 
Commission on whether this is a possibility with departures. 
 
Ferro stated remember that under the Village Residential zoning or the PVM the property could be 
converted into three or four single-family lots.  That’s another possibility for the property that could be 
done. 
 
Easter stated I think it is consistent with the townhomes across the street, but do worry about the traffic. 
 
Butterfield stated concern with the neighborhood impact.  I like the concept but just want to be careful 
with the future and what’s next as we continue to look at this. 
 
Lunn stated Units 8, 9 and 10 are non-starters.  Some of the people living there might like some green 
space. 
 
Leisman stated it seems that 1 through 7 things could be worked out with changes, and it would be 
helpful if that other parcel was with it because then you’re coming in and transition to the other zone. 
 
VIII. COMMISSION MEMBER/STAFF REPORTS 
 
Vitale’s 
Leisman asked for Jim to give an update on the Vitale’s issue, and what you’re looking for from us. 
 
Ferro stated we’re not looking for formal action unless you want to give your opinions on the 
administrative approval action that we’re proposing to give. 
 
Bajdek stated there would be minor modifications to the approved site and building plans for Vitale’s new 
site located at the southeast corner of East Fulton and Kulross, the former O’Brien’s.  The proposed 
modifications are:  covering and enclosure of the previously identified patio space on the west side of the 
building, with a gabled pitched roof; shifting the beer cooler 30 feet to the east from the southwest corner 
of the building to allow for dining in this area; an expanded driveway to accommodate the new location of 
the beer cooler to a bump-out of pavement area immediately south of the subject cooler; elimination of 
the initially proposed covered storage and dumpster area on the east side of the building.  The dumpster 
enclosure is proposed to occupy an area southeast of the building.  Even with the proposed changes, the 
number of provided parking spaces would far exceed the required amount.  The Planning Department is 
intending to sign off on the proposed changes unless Planning Commission members believe it should be 
subject to Commission review. 
 
Parking Issues 
Leisman stated he wants to look at the parking reduction formula in the PVM District. 
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Meeting 
Page 10 of 10 
 
Easter stated we are coming to the conclusion that there is a very real parking problem, but we don’t 
know the extent of the problem, and there is no clear solution to the parking problem.  There is a sub-
committee that George has put together, and Easter and Leisman will be on the sub-committee.  We are 
going to look at where are possible places; what would the cost be; what would parking look like.  Has it 
been established who we take that report back to. 
 
Ferro stated it should go to all of them, the Planning Commission and the DDA Board because there may 
be recommendations that come out of that committee that are relevant to each body. 
 
Easter stated there has been some discussion about the church on Thornapple maybe becoming 
residential.  The developer dropped that idea, but the pastor would still like to do something with that lot, 
whether it has residential and the church, or what it could look like. 
 
Ferro stated it could potentially be a source for permanent additional public parking.  They are open to 
discussions with the Township about that.  He stated the committee is going to look at what conditions do 
we anticipate in the future, and what will our parking needs be; and we’re going to need information from 
the parking consultant and some analysis to evaluate that and hear what they have to say about it. 
 
Easter stated it would be interesting if you could ask that parking consultant about the 60% multiplier. 
 
Ferro stated the first meeting of the committee is on the 21st, and the parking consultant will be there. 
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Don Borton, 7256 Rix Street, stated opposition to the townhome development on the basis of traffic 
problems, difficulty getting onto Ada Drive, parking concerns, will they be owned or rental, and if it’s a 
rental then it poses some different problems from residential.   
 
Beth Borton stated she is also opposed to the townhomes; it’s a residential neighborhood and pretty soon 
the village will have no character.  The existing house should have a family. 
 
Noelle DiVozzo, Bronson Street, stated agreement with the Bortons’ comments that the townhomes are 
not in character with the homes; it is not in keeping with what has always been there.  Zeytin restaurant 
needs a parking ramp; The Caves should keep the natural landscape; and Vitale’s should keep the natural 
landscape. 
 
Marion Bolhuis, 7266 Rix Street, stated her house was built in the 1870’s, and has been passed on 
through the family; doesn’t want to see townhouses in her backyard. 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion by Lunn, supported by Easter, to adjourn at 9:20 p.m.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith 
Ada Township Clerk 
  
JS/dr 
 


